

**ALAMEDA COUNTY
VETERANS AFFAIRS COMMISSION
BYLAWS**

ARTICLE 1

Name of the Commission

The name of the commission shall be “Alameda County Veterans Affairs Commission,” hereafter referred to as the ACVAC.

ARTICLE 2

Offices of this Commission

The office for the ACVAC is located at the Alameda County Social Services Agency, Department of Adult & Aging Services located at 6955 Foothill Boulevard, Suite 300, Oakland, California 94605-2405.

ARTICLE 3

Purpose and Responsibilities

Section 1. General Purpose

The ACVAC is appointed by the County of Alameda Board of Supervisors to advise and assist the Board of Supervisors on matters relating to veterans and their families as may pertain to meeting their basic needs for veteran’s benefits, food, shelter, transportation, and employment.

Section 2. Specific Duties

In order to achieve its general purpose, the ACVAC shall among other things:

- a. Assist in all veterans’ observance days during the year;
- b. Promote, develop, and identify the needs of the veterans and their families;
- c. Submit recommendations to the Board of Supervisors regarding programs, plans, goals, policy, and procedures dealing with veteran services;
- d. Review annually the status of veterans’ benefits;
- e. Study, investigate, and research veterans’ matters in the County of Alameda so that services to veterans can be coordinated and maximized.

ARTICLE 4

ACVAC Membership

Section 1. Appointments

Appointments to the ACVAC shall be made by the Board of Supervisors from recommendations made by the District Commanders of the respective chartered veteran’s organizations named in Section 2, except in the cases of the five (5) veterans identified as representing Board of

veteran also must have been honorably discharged from a military service per § 3(a) above and must provide proof of honorable discharge to the ACVAC Chairperson.

Section 4. Term of Office and Resignations

All Commissioners shall serve for three (3) year terms at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors with a maximum of twelve (12) successive years or until the Board of Supervisors has appointed their successor but not more than six (6) months from the expiration of their term. Any vacancy on the Commission shall be filled by the Board of Supervisors in the same manner as the original appointment:

- (a) County of Alameda Boards, Commissions and Committees Application;
- (b) Resume’;
- (c) “Statement of Support” recommendations by the District

Any person appointed to fill a vacancy shall serve for the unexpired term of the member they succeed.

- a. No Commissioner shall be reappointed to the ACVAC until three (3) years after the termination of his or her twelfth (12th) successive year.
- b. Any Commissioner may resign by giving formal written notice i.e., “Letter of Resignation.” All resignations shall be made in writing and addressed to the ACVAC Chairperson. The “Letter of Resignation” will include the effective date of the Commissioner’s resignation and the position from which he or she is resigning.

Section 5. Authorized Absence

The ACVAC Executive Committee shall allow a leave of absence for a Commissioner not to exceed a period of six (6) months with proper documentation. Any approved leave shall not toll or exhaust the time on the Commissioner’s three (3) year appointment term.

Section 6. Removal of Commissioners

A Commissioner may be terminated by resignation, death, incapacity, or removal. The Executive Committee may remove a Commissioner for failure to regularly attend scheduled meetings or for conduct detrimental to the interests of the ACVAC.

- a. Failure to attend meetings: A Commissioner may be terminated for failure to attend three (3) or more regular meetings in a calendar year. The Chairperson of the ACVAC shall have the authority to excuse not more than two (2) absences per ACVAC member per year upon finding extraordinary circumstances.
- b. Conduct detrimental to the interests of the ACVAC:
 - (1) No Commissioner shall utilize ACVAC stationary to communicate with the public, governmental, or private entities without the expressed approval of the full ACVAC and the Board of Supervisors.
 - (2) No Commissioner shall make verbal or written statements as a committee member or commissioner that leads anyone to believe that are speaking on

within ten (10) calendar days of the decision, make a written request that the Board of Supervisors review their removal at the next regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors. Unless the Board of Supervisors ratifies the Commission's decision by a majority vote, the Commissioner may complete their term as a Commissioner.

ARTICLE 5

Meetings

Section 1. Quorum

Unless a quorum is present, no business requiring a vote of the ACVAC or any of its committees may be transacted. A quorum shall be the number of Commission members equal to or greater than 50% of the appointed voting members of the Commission. For committee meetings, a quorum shall be the number of members equal to or greater than 50% of the appointed voting members of the committee.

Section 2. Regular and Annual Meetings

- a. Regular meetings of the ACVAC shall be held each month as designated by the ACVAC. Monthly meetings may be omitted, as long as the ACVAC meets a minimum of ten (10) times per year.
- b. The ACVAC and its committees shall comply with the rules established by the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 59450) in conducting meetings and a copy shall be provided to all ACVAC Commissioners.
- c. Agendas for regular meetings, special meetings, and meetings of all ACVAC standing committees shall specify the time and place of the meeting and shall contain a brief description of each item of business to be transacted at the meeting, including items to be discussed in closed session. At least seventy-two (72) hours prior to a meeting, staff must mail, e-mail, text or fax copies of the agenda to the Commissioners, or committee members in the case of a committee meeting. Staff must also ensure that the Agenda is posted seventy-two (72) hours in a place easily accessible to the general public; mailed or emailed to anyone who has made a written request for such notice during the current calendar year.

Section 3. Special Meetings

The ACVAC Chairperson, the Vice-chairperson or any two (2) Commissioners may call special meetings of the ACVAC. Notice for a special meeting shall be made in the same manner as for regular meetings.

Section 4. Adjourned Meetings

Regular, special, and standing committee meetings may be adjourned in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act. All persons who were entitled to notice of the meeting shall receive notice

Section 2. Standing Committees

- a. The standing committees of the ACVAC shall be the Executive Committee, the Membership Committee, the Community Outreach Committee, and the Budget Committee. The ACVAC may create additional standing committees by majority vote, each consisting of at least three (3) Commissioners. Additional standing committees shall be subject to the same rules and procedures as the standing committees created in these Bylaws. The standing committees shall make recommendations to the full ACVAC. The action of all committees is subject to the approval of the full ACVAC.
- b. The Chairperson shall make appointments to the committees.
- c. The Chairperson may appoint one or more committee members as alternate members of any such committee, to replace any absent member of a committee at any meeting.

Section 3. Ad-Hoc Committees

- a. Throughout the year, there are events or actions that are required by the Commission that require the creation of an ad-hoc committee. These ad-hoc committees do not continue throughout the year but are necessary for a period of time. The recurring ad-hoc committees of the Commission include: the Nomination Committee, the Bylaws Committee, and the Veterans' Observance Days Committee.
- b. The Commission may create additional ad-hoc committees by majority vote, each consisting of at least three (3) Commissioners. Additional ad-hoc committees shall be subject to the same rules and procedures as all committees created in these bylaws. The ad-hoc committees shall make recommendations to the full ACVAC. The action of all ad-hoc committees is subject to the approval of the full ACVAC.
 - (1) Nomination Committee: This ad-hoc committee shall be appointed annually by the Chairperson in September to propose nominations for the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson election in November. The committee shall consist of three (3) Commissioners. The committee shall report to the ACVAC no later than the meeting in October with their nominations for the upcoming Officer election in November. The committee shall be responsible for conducting the election process at the November ACVAC meeting. The Nomination Committee shall swear in the newly elected Officers at the January ACVAC meeting.
 - (2) Bylaws Committee: This committee shall be responsible for the maintenance of the Commission's bylaws and for reviewing the existing bylaws' rules and principles that define the ACVAC's governing structure and function as well as the roles and responsibilities of its officers and members. The committee shall consist of three (3) Commissioners. The Bylaws Committee shall be created when updates and changes are needed or required, when there are

Section 3. Chairperson

- a. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings of the ACVAC.
- b. The Chairperson shall determine whether there are extraordinary circumstances to warrant an excused absent of a ACVAC member.
- c. The Chairperson shall appoint a Nomination Committee in the month of September.
- d. The Chairperson shall exercise and perform such other power and duties as the ACVAC may assign.
- e. The Chairperson or a designated representative shall give the ACVAC’s annual Board of Supervisor update.

Section 4. Vice Chairperson

- a. The Vice-Chairperson shall perform all duties of the Chairperson, during their absence.
- b. The Vice-Chairperson shall have all powers of and be subjected to all restrictions of the Chairperson, during their absence.
- c. The Vice-Chairperson shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as the ACVAC may assign.

**ARTICLE 8
Staffing**

The Social Services Agency shall provide, to the extent of funds are made available by the Board of Supervisors, staff, and supplies necessary to assist the ACVAC in the performance of its duties, including but not limited to the issuance of notices and agenda for all meetings and maintaining a book of the minutes for all meetings.

**ARTICLE 9
Maintenance of the Commission Records and Reports**

Section 1. The Commission shall keep:

- a. Written minutes of the proceedings of the ACVAC and its committees.
- b. A record of each Commissioner’s name, address, title, and ACVAC responsibility.

Commission in which they know or has reason to know, they have a financial interest. A member of the ACVAC has a financial interest in a decision if it is reasonably foreseeable that the decision will have a material financial effect on the member or member's immediate family or in their business entity, real property, or source of income.

- d. Each Commissioner or committee member is required to disqualify themselves from participation in a decision which may have a foreseeable material financial impact on their financial interests.
- e. No Commissioner or committee member shall receive at any time any money that was donated to, raised by, or held in the name of the ACVAC.
- f. California Government Code Section 53235 requires all ACVAC Commissioners receive two (2) hours of ethics training within one (1) year of taking the "Oath of Office" and once every two (2) years thereafter.

ARTICLE 12
Rules of Order

The ACVAC shall adopt the most recent edition of Robert's Rules of Order as its parliamentary authority. Robert's Rules of Order shall apply to all questions of parliamentary procedure used at all ACVAC meetings.


ARTICLE 13
Amendments of Bylaws

Amendments of these Bylaws require a two-thirds vote of the ACVAC members at a meeting where a quorum is present. Approved amendments shall take effect once they are approved by the Board of Supervisor. Any amendments to the proposed amendments shall be handled according to the same procedures as the original amendments.

ARTICLE 14
Severability

If any part of these Bylaws is held to be null and void by any competent court of law, the remaining portion of the Bylaws shall not be affected.

Approved as to form
Donna Ziegler, County Counsel

By:  _____